Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Independent auditors’ report

To the Members of Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited

Reporti on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March g1, 2022, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows
for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a sumiary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total
comprehiensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report including Annexures thereto, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5. The Company

position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the Provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate interna] financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

6. In preparing the financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
tease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs wil] always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

8. Aspartof an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control,

e Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
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auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue

as a going concern.

) Evaluate the overal] presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of aceount,

{d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statermnents comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act.

(e}  Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2022 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure A”,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

as at March 31, 2020,

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March g3, 2022, under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contract. The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March

31, 2022,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.
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iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other bersons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer
the financial statements);

) or provide any
Note 44 (vii) to

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Comnpany from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 44 (vii) to the financial statements); and

{c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a} and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v, The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

12. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Al Akhar

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership Number: 11783g
Date: May 20, 2022 UDIN: 22117839AJHYJ D3o53
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements under elause
(i} of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Welspun Wasco
Coatings Private Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial eontrols
P

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent limitations of internal financial contrels with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal conirol over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAIL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

v
Ali Akbar
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership Number: 117839

Date: May 20, 2022 UDIN: 22117839AJHYJD3053
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i.

1.

il

iv,

V.

vi.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of property, plant and equipment including right of use assets,

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment including right of use assets are physically verified by the
Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified
by the Management during the year and nc material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3{a) to the
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets)
and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is
based on the valuation by a registered valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10%
or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets does not arise,

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or
are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016} (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on
whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is
appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns
or statements with such bank, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of account. Also refer
note 44 (ii) to the financial statements.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii),
(iii)(a), (i)(b),(iii)(c), (iiX(d), (iii){e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investment made.
The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or securities to the parties covered
under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,
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vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including goods
and services tax, provident fund, income tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 36 to the financial statements regarding
management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a} which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the
books of account.

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c} Inouropinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. (Also refer Note 44 (xiii) to the financial
statements)

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised funds on
short term basis.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix}(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Conipany.

x.  (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause a(x){b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or
on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(¢) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance

Xii.

xiii.

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints
have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under
Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under
Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xiv, (a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an internal

audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

(b} The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with them within the meaning of Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with
the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

avii,

xvik.

Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.

Aecordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d} Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group

(‘Companies in the Group’ is as defined in Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, as amended) has three CICs as part of the Group as detailed in Note 45 to the financial
statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the
management is accurate and complete,

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 22.82 million in the financial year and had not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3 {xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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Xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also
refer note 43 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Comipany is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the

XX, The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Orderis not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Finaneial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Ali Akbar

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership Number: 117839
Date: May 20, 2022 UDIN: 22117839AJHYJD3053
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Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Balance sheet
(Alt amounts in Rupees miifion, unless otherwise siated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

ASSETS
Non.current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 54.22 5327.64
Right-of-use assets a(b) 13.35 83.01
Intangible assets™ 3(a) - -
TFinancial assets

Investments 4 332 3.45
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 - -
Other non-current assets a(a) 8.66 0.31
Total non-carrent assets 70,59 415.31
Current assets
Inventories 7 27.63 107.01
Financial assels

Cash and cash equivalents 8 8.56 60.72

Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalenis g 103.77 2.41
Current tax assels (net} 10 444 6.23
Other current assets 6{b} .41 17.39
Asgel classified as held for sale 11 - 0.01
Total current assets 151.81 193.77
Total assets 231,40 605.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 466.31 499.31
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 13 {906.14} (585.08)
Total equity {406.83) (85.77)
LIABILITIES
Non-current labilities
Financial Habilities

Borrowings 14(2) 449.10 169.56

Lease Liabilities 3(b) 87.03 87.05
Provisions 15(a) 0.78 L72
Goverament grants 16 23.07 73-00
Total non-current liabilitics 500.58 332.23
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14{b) 65.20 33913

Trade payables 7

tolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.23 0.2
total outslanding dues cther than above 2.11 5.59

Lease labilities 3(b) 0.92 0.84

Other financial lisbilities 18 - 5.18
Provisions 15(b) .17 0.51
Government grants 16 2.92 7.35
Other curreni lahilities 19 2.10 3.90
Total current liabilities 7,635 362.62
Total liabilities 638,23 694.85
Total equity and liabilities 23140 609.08

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP
Firm Registration No: 012759N / N500016
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Ali Akbar
Partner

Membership No. 117839

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board

Gaurav Merchant
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: Mav 20, 2022

Percy Birdy
Director

DIN No, 07634795
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Dharmesh Pardiwala
Company Secreiary
ACS - 32069



Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss
(All amounis in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
Mazxch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations 20 271,71 234.02
Other income 21 3.20 7.56
Total income 274.01 241.58
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 134.82 65.19
Employee benefit expenses 23 8.53 17.48
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 32,70 34.12
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment and right- 25 31715 -
of-use assets
Other expenses 26 58.52 37.43
Finance costs 27 45.39 45.33
Total expenses 597.11 199.55
(Loss)/ profit before tax {3z2.20) 42.03
Income tax expense

Current tax 28 - 1.68

Deferred tax 28 - -
Total income tax expense - 1.68
(Loss)/ profit for the year (A) (322.20) 40.35
Other comprehensive income (B)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax 15 1.14 0.09
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (321.06) 40,44
Earning/(Loss) per equity share

Basic and diluted loss per share (Rs.) a8 (6.45) 0.81

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No: 012754N / N500016

I
g -
Ali Akbar

Pariner
Membership No. 117839

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2022

DIN No.ogboz725

A

Gaurav Merchant
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Percy Bird
Director
DIN No. 07634795

W

Dharmesh Pardiwala

Company Secretary
ACS - 32069
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Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Statement of cash flows
(All emounts in Rupees million, unless othenvise stated)

Year ended
March 31, zozz

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Cash flowws from operating activitics
{Loss)/ profit before tax
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets

Finance costs

Laoss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
interest income

Net nnrealised exchange differences

Fair valuation loss/ {gain) on investment
Amortisation of government grants

Eiahilities no longer required written hack

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (bracket figures represents
Increase in assets and decrease in Liabilities)

Movement in other non-current assets

Movement in inventories

Movement in other current assets

Movement in provisions

Movement in {rade pavables

Movement in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Refund of net taxes refund/paid {including tax deducted at source)

Net cash flows from operating activities {A)

Cash flows {used in)/ from investing activities

Pavments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {(including Capital
work-in-progress)

(Investment in)/proceeds from maturity of fixed deposit (net)

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of non-current investments

Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows used in financing activities

Interest paid
Principal elements of lease pavisents

Net cash flows used in financing actvities (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yvear {(refer note 8)

(322.20) 42.03
327 34.12
3¥7.15 -
44.69 44.55
0.01 0.21
(3.20) (2.42)
an (3.53)
013 (1.94)
(53.76) (7.40}
(0.55) (23.40)
18.68 82,00
(8.35) 0.54
7638 (69.19)
9.98 4.56
{0.14) 0.19
(3.38) (8.46)
(1.80) 1.29
94.27 11,15
1.79 {170)
a96.16 9.45
- 0.02
{100.27) (0.18)
2.11 2.48
- 22,15
(98.16) 24.
(42.25} (48.60)
(8.091} (8.90)
(50.16) (57.59)
(52.16) {22.58)
so.72 84.30
8.56 go.72

The ahove statement of cash flows should be read in conjunetion with the accompanying notes,

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No: 012754N / Nsooo16

Ali Akbar
Partner
Membership No. 117839

\%

Godfrey Jahn
Whole-time Director
DIN No.03602725

Place: Mumb&i
Date: May 2o, 2022

Gaurav Merchant
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: Mav 20, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Percy Birdy
Director
DiN No. 07634795

w

Dharmesh Pardiwala

Company Secretary
ACS - 320009
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Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity
(All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

. Equity share capital

Particulars Notes Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2020 409.31
Changes in equity share capital during the vear 12 -
Balance as at March 21, 2021 499.31
Changes in eguity share capital during the vear 12 -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 499.31
. Other equity (refer note 13)
Reserves and Total other equity
surplus

Retained

Earnings
Balanee as at April 1, 2020 (625.52) {625.52)
Profit for the vear 40.35 40.35
Other comprehensive income 0.09 0.09
Total comprehensive income for the year 40.44 4¢.44
Balance as at March 31, 2021 {585.08) (585.08)
Loss for the vear (322.20) (322.20)
Other comprehensive income 1.14 1.14
Total comprehensive income for the vear (321.06) (321.06)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 {906.14) (906.14)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in confunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on hehalf of the Board
Firm: Registration No: 012754 N / Nsoooib

A

-

\V

Ali Akbar Godfrey John Percy Birdy
Partner Whole-tiie Director Director
Membership No. 117839 DIN No.03602725 DIN No, 07634795 \ t
. Vf .
% % . @Aéj\
Gaurav Merchant Dharmesh Pardiwala
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACS - 32069

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date; May 20, 2022 Date: May 20, 2022



Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2zo2z2
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Background

Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited ("WWCPL" or the "Company") is a Company limited by shares incorporated on September 30, 2015
and domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in the business of all types of coating works including but not limited to concrete, cement,
polyolefin, polymers, Epoxy, coal tar, blasting, and painting or any combination theveof, performed on inside and/or outside metallic
structures as well as pipes and accessories and also to trade, seil, purchase, deal in, import, export, convert, treat and to act as agents,
distributors of the above products.

The registered office of the Company and its principal place of business is at Survey No. 569, Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar,
Kutch, Gujarat — 370110,

These financial statements are authorised for issue by the hoard of directors on May 20 2022

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional curvency. All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest bwo decimals of miliion unless otherwise stated.

Note 1: Significani accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently apptied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(if) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and labilities Tair Value

{including derivatives instruments)

Assets held for sale Fair value less cost to sell

Net defined benefit {asset)/ liability Fair Value of plan assets less present value of defined

benefit obligations
(Jil) New and amended standards adopted by the company

The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing April 01, 2021:

«Extension of COVID-1g related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116

+Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS
104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

(iv) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 23, 2022 notified Companies (Indiar Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective April 01, 2022. These amendments are not expected to havea
material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting pericds and on foreseeable future transactions.

(v} Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule 111
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule HI to the Companies Act, 2013 on March 24, 202: o increase the transparency and
provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These amendments are effective from April 01, 2021

Consequent to above, the company has changed the classification/presentation of eurrent maturities of long-term borrowings in the current
vear,

The current maturities of long-term borrowings {inciuding interest accrued) has now been included in the “Current horvowings” line item.
Previously, current maturities of long-term borrowings and inierest acerued were included in *other financial liabilities’ line item.




‘Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, zo22

The Company has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with current vear presentation as per the requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact
of such classifications is summarised below:

Balance sheet (extract) March 31, 202t | Inerease/ March 31 z021
(as previously | (Decrease) (restated)
reported)
Other financial liabilities {current} 344.31 {339.13} 5.18
Current borrowings - 339.13 339.13

{b) Segment reporting

The chief operating decision maker is the Board of Directors of the Company who assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (Refer note 34).

{c¢) Foreign currency transiation
{1) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the 'functional currency’). The financial statemenis are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and Josses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and labitities
dencminated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange diferences regarded
as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income/ other expenses as applicable.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

The Company has elected to apply the exemption in respect of accounting policy followed for long term foreign currency monetary items.
Accordingly, long term foreign currency monetary items in the books till the pericd ended March 31, 2016 have been accounted for as per the
policy adopted under previous GAAP as given below:

Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable assets are adjusted in the cost of depreciable assets and depreciated over the balance
life of the assets.

(d) Revenue recognition

{i) Sale of products

The Company sells concrete weighted coated (CWC) pipes to its customers.

The Company recognizes revenue at a determined transaction price when it satisfies an identified performance obligation in accordance with
the provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is
generally determined when title, ownership, risk of obsolescence and less pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to
payment, all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment or dejivery of the product. The Company considers freight activities as costs to
fulfil the promise to transfer the related products and the customer pavments for freight costs are recorded as a component of revenue.

In certain customer contracis, freight charges are treated as a distinet separate performance obligation and the Company recognises revenute
for such services when the performance obligation is completed.

Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered in accordance with the agreed delivery terms with the customer.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction price is based upon the amount the
Company expects to be entitied fo in exchange for transferring of promised gocds and services to the customer after deducting incentive
programs, included but not limited to liquidated damages, discounts, velume rebates etc.

Liquidated damages are damages that a customer deduets from the transaction price if the company fails to deliver the goods at a pre decided
time as per delivers scheduie. Liguidated damages are estimated based on enforcement of specific performance of contracts, In making these
estimates, the Company eonsiders predictive value of the amount that the Company expects to be liable for the transferred goods and services,

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of third parties.




Welspun Wasce Coatings Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(ii} Sale of services

Contract revenue with customers include contracts relating to pipe coating services and other services.

Where the contracts are highly integrated, they are recognised as a single performance obligation. Revenue is recognised progressively based
on the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Revenue are recognised over time when control of the asset is transferred over time when the Company’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the services are being performed.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on the method that best reflect the Company’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation {e.g. by
reference to cost incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for complete satisfaction of the
contract).

(iii) Contract assels and Contract Liabililies

When the Company petforms a service or transfers a good in advance of receiving consideration, it recognises a contract asset or receivable. A
contract asset is a Company’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Company has transferred to a customer. If the
Company transfers control of goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration, the Company records either a contract
asset or a receivable depending on the nature of the Company’s right to consideration for its performance. A contraet asset will be classified as
a receivable when the Company's right to consideration is unconditional (that is, when payment is due only on the passage of ime).The
Company shall assess a contract asset for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 109. An impairment of a contract asset shall be measured,
presented and disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset that is within the scope of Ind AS 109. The Company discloses contract assets
under Other Assets. The Company recognises a contract liability if the customer’s payment of consideration precedes the Company’s
performance. A coniract liabifity is recognised if the Company receives consideration (or if it has the unconditional right to receive
consideration} in advance of performance. The Company discloses contract liabilities under Other Liabilities.

{e} Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in
India. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respeet to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carying amounts in the financial statements, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available o utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recogaised in profit or Joss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the {ax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.




Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, zo22
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

{f) Leases
Asa Lessce

The Company leases various lands. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 30 vears but may have extension options as
described in Note 3(b). Leaschold improvements that the entity will use and benefit as long as it uses the underlying asset in the lease. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
Assets and liabilities arising fiom a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabiiities include the net present value of the
following lease payments, as applicable:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

« variable lease pavment that are based on an index or a vate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

+ amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payment to be made under reasonably certain extension options ave also inciuded in the measurement of the liability. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated hetween principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease pericd so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-uise assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
« the amouni of the initial measurement of lease liability
« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incengives received
«+ any initial direct costs, and
- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term (including extension considering
reasonable certainty} on a siraight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase aplion, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a Iease term of 12 months or less.

(g) Fmpairment of assets

All assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amouunt is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of dispoesal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows whick are fargely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

{h} Cash and cash cquivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts {if any)} are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the balance sheet, if any.

{i) Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Company hold the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance.

{3) Inventories

Raw materials and stores are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials comprises cost of purchases after
deducting rebates and discounts. Cost of raw material and stores and spares is determined on weighted average basis. Cost of werk-in progress
and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate propottion of variabie and fixed overhead expenditure, the
Jatter being aliocated on the basis of normal operating capacity, Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories 1o their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.




Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(k) Investments and other financial assets
{i)} Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through comprehensive income, or through profit or toss); and

those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(ii) Recognition
Regular way purchase and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Company commits to purchase or
sale the financial assets.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely pavments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCE): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financia assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCH). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and fosses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumutative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/ other
expenses {as applicable). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair vatue through profit or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income or other expense (as applicable} in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments ave recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of firancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income or other expenses (as applicable)
in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value,

(iv) hapairment of financial assets

The Company assesses an a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCT debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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(v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows fram the financial asset or

«retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one
or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ovwnership of
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

‘Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the finaneial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognised.

‘Where the entity has neither transferred a financtal asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(vi} Income recognition
Interestincome

Interest income from a financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the ecoomic benefits will flow to the Company and the amocunt
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis by reference to principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective intervest vate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, calt and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses.

Interest on income tax and indirect tax are recognised in the year in which it is received.

Dividends

Dividends income are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic
henefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(1) Financial liabilities

i)Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss), that are directly astributable to the issue of financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using effective interest methed. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow
{including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrving amount on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability
irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

ii} Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantiaily different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original iability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(m) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal cowrse of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(n) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lossess, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are ineluded in the asset’s carrving amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance ave charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Cost of capital work-in-progress (‘CWIPF’) comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets
outstanding as of each balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIP
for its intended use and borrowing costs incurred before the qualifving asset is ready for intended use. CWIP is not depreciated until such time
as the relevant asset is completed and ready for its intended use.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over the estimated usefui life of the
assets as given below. The estimated useful lives of assets (except computers which is preseribed under Schedule i of the Companies Act 2013)
has been determined based on internal technical evaluation which considers the nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the operating conditions of the asset, anticipated technological changes etc.

Assets ' Estimated useful life
Buildings 3 - 30 vears

Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years

Office and other equipment's 3«5 years

Furniture and fixtures % - 10 years

Computers 3 years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset's residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting pericd.

An asset’s carrving amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrving amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposalks are determined by comparing proceeds with carrving amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
income/ other expenses as (applicable).

Intangible asset

Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Campany are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Amortisation methods and periods
Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortised on a straight line basis over its expeeted useful life over a period of five
years which based on a techaical evaluation done by the Management.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale i their carrving amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than throngh continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carryving
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and
contractual vights under insurance coniracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset {or disposal group) to fair value ess costs to sell. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases i fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as heid for sale are presented separately from the
other assets in the balance sheet. The labilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in
the balance sheet.
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{o) Trade and other navables

These amounts represent linhilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 90 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current labilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
horrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility wifl be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down cecurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired, The
difference between the carryving amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liahilities assumed, is recognised in profit and loss as other income or other expenses, as
applicable.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
iability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profif or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current Habilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the standalone financial statements for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

(q) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifving asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are asseis that
are necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they are incurred.
{r) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assects

i) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the lkelihoed that an outflow will be required in settlement is deteymined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be smali. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present vatue is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense. The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising
from the restructuring, which are both necessarily entaiied hy the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.,

it} Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possibie obligation arising from past events the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the oeeurrence or non-occurrence of ene or more uncertain future events not wholly withia the control of the company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either net probable that an outflow of resources wili be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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{5) Employee henefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nen-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period ir which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as cimrent empiloyee benefit

obligation in the balance sheet,

(ii) Other long-term emplovee henefit obligations

The liability for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render
the related service. It is therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market vields at
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions ave recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement far
at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur,

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-empiovment schemes:
defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
defined contribution plans such as provident fund and emplovee's pension scheme,

Gratuity obligations

The liahility or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit
methad. Gratuity Hability is wholly unfunded.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calcutated by applving discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. The cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and fosses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they cceur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in
the balance sheet.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent financials.
Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recogaised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund and employee pension scheme

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as emplovee benefit expense when they are due.

(1) Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or foss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in liabilities as “Government grants” and are
credited te profit or loss on straight line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating income, In case
of disposal of such property, plant and equipment, related government grants included in the liabilities are written back in statement of profit
and loss
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(u) Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity asa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(v) Earnings per share

(i} Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is caienlated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares ountstanding during the financial year.

(ii) Diluted carnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and
the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been ouistanding assuming the
comversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(w) Rounding of amounis

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million {upto two decimals) as per the
requirement of Schedule IIT {Division IT}, unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgment in applving the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of tems which are more likely o be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of
caleufation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimation of Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 3{(a) :
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected usefui life, considering useful life
as per Companies Act 2013. Increasing an asset’s expected life would result in a reduced depreciation charge in the income statement.

The useful lives of the Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed annually
for appropriateness. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as weil as anticipation of future events which may
trpact their [ife such as changes in technelogy.

Historicaliy, changes in usefud lives have not resulted in material changes to the Company’s depreciation charge.

Impairment of assets (Refer note 3(a). 3(b) and note 39):

Ind AS requires that the management of the Company shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgement, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying value of assets can be
stupported by the net present value of future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an
appropriate rate. In calcuiating the net present value of the future cash flows, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly
uncertain matters including management's expectations of:

- growth in EBITDA, calculated as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation;

- long-term growth rates and

- the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular the discount rate and growth rate assumptions used in the cash flow
projections, could significantly affect the Company’s impairment evaluation and hence results. The Company’s review includes the key
assumptions related to sensitivity in the cash flow projections.

Recognition of deferred assets (Refer note 5)

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon, whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be
available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future profits, reference is made
to the approved business plan of the Company. Where the temporary differences are related to losses, local tax law is considered to determine
the availability of the losses to offset against the future taxable profits as well as whether there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised by the Company. Significant items on which the
Company has exercised accounting judgement include recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of losses, The amounis recognised in the
finangial statements in respect of each matter are derived from the Company's best estimation and judgement as described above.
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(All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(a): Property, plant and equipment (PPE), Capitad work-in-progress (CWIP) and Intangible assets

Buildings Plant and Office and Compater Furniture and Total Intangible assers
machinery other cguipments fixtures PPE {software) cwir
cquipments
Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrving amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2020 121,04 596.809 2,04 273 4-45 72B.09 (LN ) 0.44
Additiens - .05 0.00 - " 0.1 - -
Transfer from CWIP to PPE - 0.22 - - - 0.2 - {0.22
Exchange differences (Refer note (i) below) . (5.62) - B - (5.62) - -
Transferred 1o asset held for sale (refer note 12) - - - - - - - (.22
Dispesals - - (0.02) - - (0.02) - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2028 12093 501,51 2.03 @493 4.45 7an.78 .12 -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Opening accumulated depreciation and amortisation as at April 01, 2020 68.08 28092 1,91 2.48 .87 304.20 a.08 -
Depreciation and amorlisalion charge during the vear 5.08 24.83 .54 0.10 0.15 30.90 0.0 -
Disposals - - {0.02) - - (0.02} - -
Closing accumulated depreciation nnd amorlisation as at March 31, 20 23,10 314.75 2.43 258 2,82 395,14 0.12 _.
Net carrying amount a5 at March 31, 2oz 47.87 276.79 0.00 o5 o2 - -
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening pross careying amount as at April o4, 2021 121,03 501.54 3.0 273 4445 722,78 Q.12 B
Exchange differences {Refer note (i) below) - 5.01 - - - 541 - -
Disposals “ - (0.01) - - (0.01} - .
Closing gross carrving amount as at Mareh 31, 2022 121,63 597.45 3.02 445, 728.68 0.12 -
Accumulated depreciation, anmortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation and amortisation as at April o1, 2021 73.10 314.75 .43 2.58 2,23 EOLRE ] vz -
Depreciation and amortisation charge during the vear 4358 ag.an .39 - oogd 29.53 - 3 -
Disposals - . (0.01) - - (¢.01) - -
Impairment Loss (Refer note 25 and note 39) 36.11 213.69 - - - =19.80
Clasing accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment as at March 31, 112.85 552,66 2,81 2,58 2.50 674,46 0.1 B
20o2
Net eareying amount as at March 31, 20 718 44.79 0.21 o.15 1.89 St - -

* Amount is below the rounding norms adepted by the Company.

Notes:
{i) Contractual obligations

Refer to nole 37(2) for diselosure of contractual comsmitments for the aequisilion of property, plant and equipment.

(i) Exchange differences

In accordance with para D13AA of Ind AS 101 Fivst lime adoplion of Indian Accounting Slandards and the option available in the Companies (Accounting Standards) (Second Amendment) Rules, 2011, as amended, vide nutifieation
dated December 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adjusted the exchange rate difierence arising on long term foreign currency monetary ilems, in so far as they relute to the acquisition of a
depreciable capilal assel, lo the cost of the asset,

Accordingly, the Company has adjusted exchange Loss of Rs. 5.91 (March 31, zo21: Gain Rs. 5.62) to the cosl of property, plant and equipment as the long term monetary items relale 1o depreeiable eapital assel

I T

(3i1) The Company does not own any immovable properties,

A
it Uy
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
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(All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(b): Leases

(i} Amounts recognised in balance sheet

- Agat As at
Right-of-use assets March 31, 2oz2 March 31, 2021
Leasehold land Bo.74 83.01
Less: Impairment on right of use assests (refer note 39) 67.35 -
Total Right-of-use assets 12.39 83.91

. pepias As at Asat

Lease liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current 0.92 0.84
Non-current 87.03 87.95
Total lease liabilities 8%.05 88.79

The Company has leased lands from Related Party Welspun Corp Limited for a periog of 3o vears {including extension of 20 vears}

Extension options included in leasehold lands contract of Company. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Company and the respective lessor.

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 3.17 3.18
3:17 3.8

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense (including in finance cost in note 27) 8.07 813
8.07 8.3
8.91 8.90

The total cash outilow for the leases during the year

e T,
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Notc 4: Non-current investments (refer note 35)

Asat As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments in equity instruments (fully paid up)
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Unquoted
Welspun, Captive Power Generation Limited
29,004 (March 31, 2021: 29,004) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3.32 3.45
Total investments in equity instruments 3.32 2.45
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 3.32 3.45

The above disclosure is also in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Note 5: Deferred tax assets (net)

The balance comprises temporary differences atiributable to:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Peferred tax assets:
Carried forward business loss 78.41 77.61
Unabsorbed depreciation 94.48 86.04
Property, plant and equipment 69.34 1.48
Employee benefit obligations 0.11 0.47
Government grant 4.17 4.70
Lease liability (Net of right-of-use asset) 2.01 1.36
Others 0.38 6.61
248.00 178.47
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
Deferred tax liabilities:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 0.61 0.64
0.6t 0.64
Net deferred tax assets {248.29) (177.83)

Deferred tax assets (net) - Recognised in Balance Sheet - -
Considering the finaneial position of the Company and information given under notes 36 and 41, the Company has recognised deferred
tax assets to the extent of deferred tax liabilities.
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Note 5: Deferred tax assets (net) (Contd...)

Movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabHities:

Deferred tax asset Deferred tax linbiities Net
Property, Carried Unabsorbed | Employee | Government Lease Others Total Financial assets Total Deferred
plant and forward depreciation benefit grant liability (Net deferred tax at fair value deferred tax | tax assets
equipment | business loss obligations of right-of- asset through profit or| liabilities recognised
use asset) loss
As at April 1, 2020 13.04 01.47 86.24 0.40 5.24 c.69 6.79 204.77 0.20 0.20 -
Charged/{Credited)
to profit and loss {12.46) (13.80) - 0.07 (0.54) 0.67 (0.18) (26.30) 0.44 0.44 -
As at March 31, 2021 1.48 77,61 86.24 0.47 4.570 1.36 6.61 178.47 | 0.64 0.64 -
Charged/{Credited)
to profit and loss 67.86 0.80 8.24 (0.36) (0.53) 0.65 (6.23) 70.43 (0.03) (0.03) -
As at March 21, 2022 6G.34 78,41 94.48 0.11 4.17 2.01 0.38 248.90 0.61 0.61 -
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(Al amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated}

Note 6: Other assets

(a) Non-current

Asat

March 31, 2022

Asgat
March 31, 2021

Balance with statutory authorities 8.38 0,03
Others* 0.28 0.28
Total other non-current assets 8.66 .31
*Represents amount recoverable from emplovees towards employee's contribution for provident fund (refer note 36)

{h) Current

Balance with statutory authorities - 9.03
Prepaid expenses 0.20 1.20
Advance to suppliers 2.07 1.42
Governinent grant receivable {refer note 16 (i)} 5.14 5.14
Total other current assets 741 17.39

Note 7 : Inventories

Asg at
March 33, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Raw materials 17.41 96.39
Stores and spares 10,22 10.62
Total inventories 27.62 107,01

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Balances with banks

in current accounts 8.56 15.66
Deposits with maturity of less than three months {including interest - 45.05
aceried)
Cash on hand v 0.01
Totai eash and cash equivalents 8.56 60.72

Note 9: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at
Mareh 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 103.77 2,41
(including interest accrued)
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 103.77 2.41

Note 10: Current tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 23z, zo22 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 6.23 6.21
Add: Current tax - (1.68)
Add: Taxes (refund)/paid including tax deducted at source (179} .70
Total eurrent tax assets {net) 4.44 6.23

Note 11: Asset classified as held for sale

Asset held for sale (refer note below)

Total asset elassified as held for sale
It represents office equipment held for sale.

As at
March 31, 2o22

As at
March 31, 2021

Q.01

0.01
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Note 12: Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capitai

Par value
(in Rs.)
As at April o1, zozo 10.00
Movement during the vear -
As at March 31, 2021 16.60
Movement during the year -
As at March 31, zozz 10.00

(i) Movements in issued equity share capital

As at April o1, 2020
Movement during the year
As at March 31, 2021
Movement during the vear
As at March 31, 2022

‘Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Number of Amouny
shares
0,00,00,000 600.00
6,00,00,000 600.00
6.00,00,000 600.00
Number of Amount
shares o m—
4,99,31,400 499.31
4,99.31,400 499.31

4.99.31.400 400.31

Equity shares have a par value of Rs. 10 each. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up of the Company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or hy proxy, is entitled to one vote, and

upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.
{ii} Shares of the Company held by joint venturers
Equity shares:
Wetspun Corp Limited
Wasco Coatings Limited
(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, zo22

Number of % holding
shares
Equity shares:
‘Welspun Corp Limited 2,64,05,014 51.00%
Wasco Coatings Limited 2,44,66,386 49.06%

(iv) Details of sharcholdings of promoters
As at March 31, zo2z2

Asat Asat
March a1, zozz2 Barch 31, 2021

2,54,65,014 2,54,65,014
2,44,66,380 2,44,66,380

As at March 31, zoz21

Number of % holding
shares
2,64,05,014 51.00%
2,44,66,380 49.00%

As at March 31, 2021

Name of Promoters Number of Percentage of Percentage Number of Percentage Percentage of
shares total number of of change shares of total change during the
shares during the number of  year
year shares
Welspun Corp Limited 2,54,65,014 51,00% 2.54,65,004 51.00% -
Wasco Coatings Limited 2,44,66,386 49.00% 2,44,66,386 49.00% -
Note 13: Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Asat Asat
March 31, 2oz2z March 31, 2021
Retained carnings {906.14) (585.08)
Total reserves and surplus 06.1 (585.08})
Retained earnings
Asat As at
March 31, zo22 March 31, 2021
Opening balance {595.08) (625.52)
(Loss)/profit for the yvear {322.20) 40.35
Other comprehensive income 114 0.09
Closing balance 06.1 (585.08)

Nature and Purpese of Other Equity

Retained Earnings

arnings comprises of prior vears as well as current year’s undistributed earnings after taxes.
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Note 14 Borrowings

{a) Non-current

Unsecured
Term loan

Lear froms joint venturers (refer note (2) below, note 3s)

Total non-cerrent borrowings
(h) Current
Loans repayable on demand

Unsecured
Term loan

Current malurities of long-term borrowings (refer note (a) helow and note 35}

Total current borrowings

Note (a): Loan from joint venturers

Asat
March 31, 2022

As at
March g1, 2021

440,10 164.56
449.10 169.50,
69.20 33913

69.20 339.13

i) Loan from Welspun Cerp Limited (WCL) amouating lo INR 24701 {March 31, 2021: INR 247.01) carries interest rates of 10,75% which shall be payable biannually on Seplember 30
and March 31 every year. The loan is repayable in 7 equal half vear installment comuneacing from February 2023 and ending on February 2026 . During the year the amount of INR

35.28 (March 31, 2021: INR 160,04 has been transferred to current maturities of long-term borrowings.

ii) Loan of UST} 3.58 mitlion (March 31, 2021: USI} 3.58 million) eguivalent 10 Rs. 271.29 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 261.68) from Wasco Coalings Limited. The Joan carries interest rates of
3.75% which shall be payabie biannually on September 30 and March 31 every year. The loan is repayable in 7 equal haif year instaliment commencing from February 2023 and ending
on Februrary 2026. During the year the amount of INR 33.92 (March 31, 2021: INR 174.00 has been transferred to current maturities of long-term borrowings.

(c): Net debt reconciliation

Cash and cash eguivalents
Lease Ligbililies
Borrowings*

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
8.56 6072
(87.05) (88.79)
(518.30) (513.32)
(597.69) {541.39)

Cash and cash Lease Borrowings® Total
equivalents Liabilities ] [D] =]A]-[B]-
Al [B] 1
Nct debts as at April o1, 2020 84.30 (Bo.56) {517.85) (523.11)
Interest acerued as at April 01, 2020 - - {16.80) (16.80)
Cash flow (net) (23.58) 8.90 - (14.68)
Foreign exchange adjustments {net) - - 5.15 0.15
Interest expenses - (B.13) (36.42) (34.55)
Interest paid - - 48.60 48.60
Net debts as at March 31, 2oz 60.72 {88.79) (508.69) (5536.76)
Interest accrued as at March 31, 2021 - - {4.63) (4.63)
Cash flow (net) {52.16) 8.01 - (43.25)
Foreign exchange adjustments (net) - - {9.61) {g.61)
Interest expenses - (8.07) (36.62) (44.69)
Interest paid - - 41.35 41.25
Net debts as at March 31, 2oz 8.56 (87.95) (518.30) {59%.69)

Interest accrued as at March 31, 2022

#Includes current maturities of long-term horrowings
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Note 15: Provisions

(a) Non-current

Asat
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

Gratuity (Refer note (i) to (vt below) 0.22 116
Other provisions

Provision for Hiigation/disputes (refer nole below and note 36) 0.56 0.56
Total non-current provisions 0.78 172
(h) Current
Gratuity (Refer note {ii) to (vi) helow) 0.01 .06
Leave obligations (Refer note (i) below) o.16 0.45
Fotal current provisions 0.17 0.51
Movement in provision for litigation/disputes:
Opening Balance 0.56 0.68
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less : Utilised during the year 0.12
Closing balance 0,56 0.506

Note: There are uncerlainties regarding the timing and amount of the provisions. Changes in underlying facts and circumstances for each provision could result in differences in the

amounis provided for and ihe actual cash outfiow,

Notes:

(i) Leave gbligations

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for carned leave.

(ii) Post-employment obligations - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Pavment of Gratuity Act, s¢72. The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of
centinuous service, to gratuity ot the rate of fifteen day wages for every completed vear of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the

employee concerned. The gratuity plan is a nonfunded plan.

This defined benefit plans expeose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest vate risk and market (inveslment) risk.

(iii} Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity

The amounts recegnised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the vear are as follows:

Present value of obligation

As at
March 31, zo2z

Asat
March 31, 2021

Opening balance 1.22 1.02
Current service cost 0.06 0.25
Interest expense a.08 0.07
Tolal amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 0.14 0.32
Remeasurements
Tolal Acluarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation

Experience losses (gains)/iossess (1.13) {0.10)

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumplions (0.01) 0.01
Tolal amount recognised in other comprehensive income (1.14) (0.09)
Benefit Payment - [0.03)
Closing balance 0.22 Loz
Non-¢urrent .22 1.16
Current 0,01 0.06
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The aet liability discipsed above relating to unfunded plan is as follows:

Unfunded plans

(iv) Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate
Salary growth rate

{v) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivily of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumplions are:

Asat
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

9,22

Asat
March 31, 2622

Asat
March 31, zoz1

7.41%
4.00%

6.83%
6.00%

Assumptions Impac efined benefit obligation
Change in assumnption Increase inassumniion Decrease in assumption
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2021 2020 2021 2022 2021
Diseount rate 0.50% 0.50% Decrease by (0.05) (0.05)} Increase by .05 0,05
Salary growth rate 0.50% 0.50% Inerease by 0.05 0.05] Decrease by (.05} (0.03)

(+1) Defined benefit liakility and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5 years {2021 - 5 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity henefits is as {otlows:

Less thana Behwveen Between Total
year 1-2 years 2-5 Years
March 31, 2p22
Defined benefit obligations- Gratuity 0.0 0.02 0.09 8.13
March 31, 2021
Defined benefit oblizations- Gratuily 0.13 0.13 a.ta 2.36

Note 16: Government grants

Opening balance {refer note (i) and (i) below)
Less: Recognised in the statement of profit and loss (refer note 20)

Less: Writeback due te impairment of corresponding assets (refer notz 393

Won Current
Current

Note:

Asat
Nhiarch 31, 2o22

Asat
March 31, 2021

80.35 87.75
7.33 7.40
46.41 -
26.59 80.35
23.67 73.00
2.2 7.35

(i} The Company had availed the benefit of Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme provided by the Government of India (Ministry of Commerce and Industiy) on import of

fixed assets,

(ii) The Company had availed the benefit under Resolution no INC-102015-645091-1 Sachivalaya Gandhinagar Dt 25-07-2036 Gujarat Industria? Policy 2015 -Scheme for Incentive to
Industries (General) 2016-21,
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Note 17: Trade pavables
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade payables of micro and small enterprises (refer nole 432) 0.2% 0.12

‘Trade pavables other than micro and small enterprizes:

Trade payables t¢ related parties (refer note 35) 0.37 0.29
Others 1.74 3.30
Total trade payables 2,34 5.71

Ageing of trade payables:
Year ended March 31, 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars Unhilled Notdue | Lessthan1 | 1-2vears | 2-3yvears |More than 3 years Total
year
Undisputed trade payvables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.16 0.03 0.04 - - - 0,13
Others 1.82 0.29 - - - - 2.11
Total 1.98 0.32 0.04 - - - 2.34

Year ended March 31, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from die date

Particulars Unhitfed Notdue | Lessthan1 | 1-2 years | 2-3yvears |More than 3 vears Total
year
Undisputed trade payables
Micro entlerprises and small enlerprises 0.04 0.04 .04 012
Others 5.50 - - ~ - - 559
‘Total 5.63 - 0.04 0.03 - - 5,71

Note 18 : Other financial liabilities
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings (refer note 35) - 4.63
Capital creditors
total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 42) - -
total outstanding dues other than above - .55
Total other current financial liabilities - 5.18

Note 19: Other current liabilities
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Statutory dues pavables 2.04 1.90
Empioyee dues payable 0.01 1.91

Total other current liabilities 2.10 3.00
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Note 20 : Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with custonmers

Sale of services (refer note below)
Total revenue from contract with customers

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales

Government grants {refer note 16}
Eiabifities no longer required written bagk
Total other operating revenue

Total revenue from operations

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 33, 2021

The Company has provided coating and other services to its customers for Rs. 217.24 { March 31, 2021 : Rs 203.21).

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Contract price
Adjustments

Revenue from operations

Note z1: Other income

Interest income from fixed deposits {refer note 31 (vii}}
Interest income from Income tax refund (refer note 31 vii)
Fair valuation gain on investment (net)

Foreign exchange difference (net)

Total other income

MNote az2: Cost of materials consumed

Raw materials at the beginning of the vear
Add: Purchases

Less : Raw materials at the end of the year
Total cost of materials consumed

Note 23: Emplovec benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note helow)
Gratuity {refer note 15(iii))

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefit expenses

Note:
Defined contribution plans
i. Employers” Contribution to Provident Fund and Emplevee’s Pension Scheme, 1995

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund
Employer’s Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme
Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

217.24 203.21
2177, 203.21
0.16 0.01
53.76 7.40
0.55 23.40
54.47 30.83
27171 214.02
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

217.24

203.21

e 217.24

Year ended
March 31, 2022

203,21

Year ended
March 31, 2021

2.97 a3
0.23 0.19
- 1.94
- 3.20
3.20 .56
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2oz

March 31, 2021

96.39 29.31
55.84 132.27
152,23 161.58
17.41 96,39
134.82 65.19
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2o21

7.9% 16.37
0.40 078
0.14 0.32
- 0.01
£.53 17.48
Year ended Year ended

Mareh 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

0.33 0.41
0.07 Q.37
0.40 0.78
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Note 24: Depreciation and amortisation expense (refer note 3)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, zozz
Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment 29.53 3090
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3.17 318
Amortisation of intangible assets - 0.04
Total depreciation and amertisation expense 32.70 4.1z

Note 25: Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use-assets (refer note 39)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, zo22 March 31, 2021
Loss on impairment of
buildings 36.11 -
plant and machinery 213.69 -
right-of-use-assets 67.35 “
Total loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment and 317.15 -
right-of-use-assets
Naote 26: Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2o21
Consumption of stores and spares 3117 7.61
Labour charges 6.81 1217
Coating and other job charges 0.54 0.88
Water ang electricity charges 3.18 3.05
Freight, material handling and transportation 2.01 3.00
Rental charges (Refer note 3(b}) - -
Rates and taxes 0.17 0.97
Repairs and mainterance
Piant and machinery 0.04 o0az
Others 1.86 150
Travel and convevance 0.37 0.47
Telephone and communication charges 0.02 -
Legal and professionai fees 1.64 1.31
Foreign exchange difference {net) 3.7 -
Insurance 1.32 1.37
Directors' sitting fees (vefer note 35) 013 018
Printing and stationery - 0,01
Security charges 0.8 077
Membership ard subscription 0.02 0.01
Vehicle expenses 0.31 0.31
Payment to auditers (refer note below} 1.53 .70
Fair valuation loss on Investment (net) 0.13 -
Loss on disposal of property plant and eguipment {net) 0.01 0.21
Office expenses 0.55 0.66
Gardening Expenses 1.26 1.07
Miscellaneous expenses 0.04 -
Total other cxpenses 58.52 37.43
Note:
Details of payment te auditors
As auditor:
Audit fees .35 1.35
Tax audit fees 0.15 0.15
In other capacities:
Group Reporting fees - 0.20
Certification fees 0.03 .
Re-imbursement of expenses - -
Total 1.53 178

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company




‘Welspun Wasco Coatings Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
and the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated}

Note 27: Finance costs
Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, zo21

Interest on:

Term oans (refer note 35) 36.62 36.42
Interest and finance charges on lease Habilities (refer note 3(b)) B.07 8.13
Other finance charges 0.70 .78
Tetal finance costs 45.39 45.33
Note 28: Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, zo21

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax on profits for the year -
Adjustments for current tax of prior year -

1.68

Total current tax -

1,68

Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) recognised (Refer note 5) -

Total income tax expense -

1.68

(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Year ended
March 31, zo22

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit/ {loss} before tax (322.20)} 42.03
Tax rate 27.82% 27,850
Tax at normal rate (80.64} 11,69
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in caleulating
taxable income :
Taxlosses/ (income) for which no deferrad tax was recognised 89.64 {11.69)
Adjustments for current tax of prior year - 1.68
- 1,68

Note 243

The indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company
fowards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been released by the Ministey of
Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020, The Company is in the process of assessing the additional impact on Provident
Fund contributions and on Gratuity liability contributions and will complete their evaluation and give appropriate impact in the

financial statements in: the period in which the rules that are notified become effective,

Note 30: Contingent liability
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Note 31 : Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

, 2022

March

Asat

1, 2022

hMarch 31, 2021

Asat

FVPL

Amortised Cost

FVPL

Amortised Cost

Financial assets
Investments
Equity instruments 3.32
Cash and cash equivalents -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents -

8.56
103.77

3.45 -

60.72
2.41

Total financial assets 3.32

112.33

3.45

63.13

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including interest accrued and current -
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade pavables -

513.32

‘Total financial liabilities -

520.64

519.03

(i) Fair value hierarchy

‘Fhis section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at fair value ang (b}
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath

the table.

Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2022

Level 1

Level 2

Level g

Total

Financial assets
Financial investments at FVPL
Unquoted equity investment

3.32

3.32

Totzl financial assets

3.32

3.22

Financial liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair value are disclos

ed at March 31, 2022

Level 1

Level 2

Levelg

Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including interest acerued and corrent maturities of long term
berrowings)

518.30

518.30

Total financial liabilities

518.30

518.30

Financial asscts measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2021

Level1

Level 2

Levelg

Total

Financial assets
Financial investments at FVPL
Unquoted equity investment

345

345

Total financial assets

3.45

3-45

Financial liabilities which are measured at amortised ¢ost for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2021

Level s

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial liabilitics
Borrowings (including interest accrued and current maturities of long terin
borrowings)

513.32

513.32

Total financial liabilities

513.32

513.32

Analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below,

Level 1: This hierarchy inciudes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The Company does not have any investment under this category.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. The Company does not have any investment under this category.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Company has classified equity securities in this
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Note g1: Fair value measurement {Contd...)

(ii} Valuation techniques used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
- the fair value of untisted equity instruments are determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Unlisted equity Unlisted Total
securities preference
shares

As at April o1, 2020 2,06 21.60 23.66

Gain recognised in profit or loss 139 .55 1.94

Disposals - (22.15) (22.15)

As at March 31, 2021 3.45 - 345

Loss recogaised in profit or loss (0.13) {0.13)

As at March 31, zo22 3.32 - 3.32

Unrealised gain/ (loss) recognised in profit or loss related to assets held

at the end of the reporting period

March 31, 2022 (0.3} - (0.13)

March 31, 2021 1.39 0.55 1,94
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

Particulars Fair value as at Significant Probability weighted average Sensitivity

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 unobservable March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
inputs
Ungquoted equity 3.32 9.45 Risk adjusted 14.50% 14.50% The estimated fair value
shares discount rate would increase/ (decrease
if diseount rate were
lower/(higher)
(v) Valuation processes
The fair value of unlisted equity instruments are determined using discounted cash flow analysis by independent valuer.
(vi) Fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Agat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial liabilities

Borrowings {including interest accrued and current maturities of long 518.30 518.30 513.32 513.32

term borrowings)

Total financial liabilities 518.30 518.30 513.32 513.32

a) The carrying amounts of trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered tobe the  same

as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

b) The fair value and carrving value of borrowings is materially the same.

(vii)

Classification of interest income by instrument category

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
NMarch 31, 2021

Interest income at amortised cost
Fixed deposits

Other interest income
jncome tax refund

2.23

.39
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Note 32: Financial risk management

‘The Compam’s principal financial liabilities represents borrawings and payables to creditors, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to pay for the Concrate Weight
Coating (CWC) plant set-up in Anjar, Gujarat, India, The Company’'s principal financial assets consists of cash and cash eguivalents and other bank balances. The Company also
holds FVPL investments.

The Company's activities exposes it to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk- securities prices. The directors of the Company (considering size of business)
oversees the management of these risks which are governed by appropriate pelicies and procedures and financial risks are identified, measured arnd managed in accordance with
the Company’'s policies and risk chjectives.

{A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contraciual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct
risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a pelicy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and cbtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as & means of mitigating the risk of financial foss from defaults. The Company uses other publicly available financial
information and its own trading records to rate its majer customers, The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved
annually, The Company has no trade receivables asat March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

{B) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shertage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions
unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continucushy monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and lisbilities,

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and liquid funds and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet obligations when due and tc close out market positions. The liguidity risk is monitered through budgets (comprises of uadrawn berrowings below) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash fiows by the management presented by the Board of Directors.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the fellowing undravwn borrowing facilities for working capital at the end of the reporting period:
Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 3z, 2021

Floating rate
Expiring within one vear 20.00 20,00
Total 20.00 20.00

{ii} Maturities of financial liabilities:
‘The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities,

The amounts disclosed in the table are the centractual undiscounted cash fiows. Balances due within: 12 months equat their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

As at March 31, 2022

Contractual maturities of financial <1 Year 1- 3 vears 3- 5 years > 5 years Total Carrying
lialilities value
Borrowings (including interest accroed and 110.32 341.72 155.09 - 607,13 518.30
current maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payvables 2,94 - - - 2.34 2.39
Lease liabilities 8.60 17.80 17.80 190.57 235.07 87.05
Total liabilitics 121.56 359.52 172.89 190.57 844.54 608.50
As at March 31, 2021

Contractual maturities of finaneial < 1Year 1~ 3 years 3-5years > 5years Total Carrying
Uiahilities xalue
Borrowings (including interest acerued and 366.45 173.45 - - 539.90 513.32
current maturities of leng term borrowings)

Trade pavables 5.71 - - - 5 5.71
Other financial lizbilities 0.55 - - - G.55 0.55
Lease liabilities 8.90 17.80 17.80 190.57 235.07 8B.79
Tetal liabilitics 381.61 191.25 17.80 190.57 »81.23 608.37
(C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: currentcy risk, interest risk and investment price risk,

(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure o the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the payable for capital expenditure of creditors and borrowings taken, where deemed appropriate by management,
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Note 32: Financial risk management (Contd...)

{a) Foreign currency risk exposure
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in equivalent in INR Rupees is as follows:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Usp EUR Others UsSD EUR Others
Financial Habilities
Borrowings 271.2G - - 266,31 - -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 27520 - - 266,31 - -
(lizbilities)

(b} As at the Balance Sheet date, following foreign currency exposures (including non financial assets and liabilities) are not hedged by a
derivative instrument or otherwise:

Amount in Rupecs Equivalent amount in USD
(in millions)
As at Asat As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 21, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Liabilities
Borrowings 271.29 266.31 3.58 3.63
Net unhedged foreign currency exposure 271,209 266.31 3.58 3.63
{c) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments,

Impact gn profit hefore fax
Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

USD sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 1% (2.71) (2.66)
(March 31, 2021 - 1%)*

INR/USD - Decrease by 1% 2,71 2.66

(March 31. 2025 - 1%)*

* Holding all other variables constant for which foreign fluctuation mav oceur.

{ii) Interest rate risk
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates arising principally on changes in LIBOR rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk. During March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company’s borrowings at fixed rates were mainly denominated in USD and there are no horrowings with variable rates,

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fixed rate borrowings (foint venturers' loan) 518.30 508.60

{1ii) Security prices

a) Exposure
The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from movement in market price of securities classified as fair value through profit and loss,

b) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the gain/{loss) impact on account of increase/decrease in the equity share prices on the Company's equity and profit for the period.

Impact on profit before tax
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase inrate 1% (March 31, 2021-19%) {G.03) (0.03)
Decrease in rate 1% (March 31, 2021 -1%) .03 0.03
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Note 33: Capital management

(a) Risk management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguard their ability to continue as 4 going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakehelders, and
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by
‘Fotal 'equity’ {as shown in the balance sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net debt (total borrowings including current 493.92 538.98
maturities and lease liabilities net of cash and
cash equivalents and other bank balances}
Total equity (406.83) (85.77)
Net debt to equity ratio (1.21) (6.28)

Loan covenants
The Company has borrowings as at the end of the reporting period, however there are no covenants attached to the

borrowings,

(b) Dividends
The Company has not declared dividends in the current reporting year as well as in the previous vear.

Note 34: Segment information

(i) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company's chief operating decision maker is Board of Director of the Company who examines the Company's
performance only from the product perspective and has accordingly, identified only one reportable segment which is
manufacturing, processing and dealing in coating works,

(ii) The chief operating decision maker primarily uses a measure of profit/ (Loss) before tax as included in the internal
management report to assess the performance of the operating segmeut which is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the financial statements.

(iii) Revenue from major external customers is as follows:

For the year ended Number of Amount % to revenue from
customer operations
March 31, 3022 1 217.24 100%
Mareh 31, 2001 1 203.21 100%

(v} The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the
customers is shown in the table below:

Revenue from external customers Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Marech 31, 2021
India 217.24 203.21

(v) The total of the non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferved tax assets (net) are lecated only in India as
at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
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Note 35: Related party transactions

(a) Joint venturers

The Company is jointly controlled by the following entities:

Name Type Ownership interest
March 31, 2022 March 31, zom
Welspun Corp Limited Joint venturer 51% 51%
Wasco Coatings Limited Joint venturer 40% 9%

(b) Key management personnel

Name

Nature of relationship

Mr. Vipul Mathur

Mr. Godfrey John

Mr. Balkrishan Goenka
Mr. K.H.Viswanathan

Mr. Maccagno Giancarlo
Mr. Ramanathan Singaram
Mr. Percy Birdy

Mr. Martyn John Wilmott
Mr. Gaurav Merchant

Mr. Dharmesh Pardiwala

Whole-time Director (ceased w.e.f. April 2, 2021)
Whole-time Director (appointed w.c.f. April 2, 2021)
Nominee Director (till October 27, 2020}
Independent Director

Nominee Director (till October 5, 2020)

Nominee Director

Nominee Director (appointed w.e.£. October 27, 2020)
Nominee Director (appeinted w.e.f. October 5, 2020)
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

{c} List of other entitics over which key management personnel or relatives of such personnel exercise significant influenee or

(d)

control and with whom transaction have taken place during the current year and previous year:

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Welspun Corp Limited

Welgpimn India Limited

‘Wasco Coatings Limited

Turnkey Pipeline Limited

Welspun Global Services Limited
Welassure Private Limited

Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Year ended
March 31, 202z

Year ended
March 31, 2021

‘Transactions with Welspun Corp Limited (WCL)
Sale of services
Sale of scrap
Purchase of machinery stores/ spares, other consumables
Purchase of services
Corporate guarantee commission paid
Interest expense on loan
Rent paid
Reimbursement of expenses toc WCL

Transactions with Wasco Coatings Limited
Interest expense on Joan

Transactiens with Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited
Purchase of goods
Redemption of Preference Shares

Transactions with Welspun India Limited
Purchase of goods

Transactions with ‘Welspun Global Services Limited
Purchase of Services

Transactions with Welassure Private Limited
Purchase of services

Transactions with Turnkey Pipeline Limited
Purchase of stores and spares

Sitting fees paid

Mr. K H Viswanathan

243.35

0.18

26.55
10.50
11.64

10.0%

1.72

0.01

0.53

1.81

g.86

173
22,15

1.38

0.12

Note : Amount is inclasive of applicable taxes
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(e) Disclosure of significant closing balances:

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, sos1

1) Trade payables

‘Welspun Corp Limited 0.03% 0.06

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited 0.09 0.08

Welspun Global Services Limited Q.11 -

‘Welassure Private Limited 0.16 0.15
Total trade payables 0,37 0,29
2) Non-current investments

Welspun Captive Power Generation Limited 3.92 2.45
Total non-current investments 3.3 3.45
3) Borrowings

Welspun Corp Limited 247.01 247.01

Wasco Coatings Limited# 271.29 266.31
Total borrowings 518.30 513.32

# Amount includes interest accrued outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs, NIL (March 31, 2021: 4.63).

(f) Terms and conditions
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and eonditions and at market rates.
The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration.
All outstanding bajances are unsecured and are repayahble in cash.
Note: Directors of the Company are also employed by the other entities of Welspun Corp Limited group and they have not been paid remuneration
accordingly.

Note 36:

Pursuant to the Supreme Court Judgment in the case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1)
West Bengal” in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages” of the relevant emplosees for the purposes of
determining contribution to provident fiund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and subsequent dismissal of
the review petition filed against the Judgement, the Company has assesses the impact and on conservative basis made provision {presented under Non-
current) of Rs 0.56 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 0.56). The Company had alse determined and discharged the provident fund liability from September 1, 2019
considering the impact of the judgement. Additionat paymient of Rs. 0.12 had been made and had been disclosed under Current Provisions in March 31,
2020.

The Company had changed its salary structure in the month of June 2020 w.e.f April 01, 2020 to comply with above judgement, The Company had

borne the employee's contribution to provident fund for the period September o1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 aggregating to Rs. 0.06 and accordingly it has
written off the amount recoverable from the employees shown under the non-current assets to Employee benefits expense.

Note g377: Capital and other commitments

(a) Capital commitments

There are no capita} commitments as at the March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, respectively.

(b) Other commitments

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Onstanding tetters of credit - 23.86
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Note 38: Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, zo21

Profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company {az2.20) 40.35
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,96,31,400 4.99,31,400
Basic and diluted profit/(loss) per share (Rs.) (6.45) 0.81

10.00 10.00

Nominal value of an equity share (Rs.)

Note 39: Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Consequent to the losses incurred by the company and no order book to support future business operations, there are indicators of potential impairment of

property, plant and equipment. The Manageiment had assessed the impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use-assets by reviewing the
business forecasts using discounted cash flow valuation mede! (the “model”) to caleulate the recoverable amount (value in use). The impairment assessment
had beer: carsied out at the plant level, which was considered as the relevant cash generating unit (CGU). The management had considered post-tax disceunt
rate of 16% in the model. The main classes of assets impacted were plant and machinery and building and right-of-use-assets.

Based on the assessment, Management noted that provision for impairment of INR 249.80 was required to be made in respect of the property, plant and
equipment in the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 and right-of-use-assets. INR 67.35. Due to such impairment, government grants of
INR 46.41 has been writtenback in current year. This loss on impairment had been disclosed as a separate line item in statement of profit and loss and
writeback of government grant included in 'other operating revenue”. Sigaificant assumptions used in the model were discount rate and growth rate.

Note 40: Note on Covid-19
Management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID 19 in preparation for these financial statements. Management has considered all relevant

external and internal factors in the measurement of assets and liabilities including recoverability of carrying values of its assets, its liquidity position and ability
to repay debis. No adjustment to key estimates and judgements that impact the financial statiments have been identified, However, the impact assessment of
COVID 19 will be a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and no significant impact is envisaged on the operations.

Note 41: Going Concern
The net worth of the Company as on March 31, 2022 has been fully eroded duze to losses ineurred (including impairment of property, plant and equipment and

right-to-use assets). Having regard to approved business plang, cash flow projections,financial ratios ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial Habilities and the commitment from its shareholders Welspun Corp Limited and Wasco Coatings Limited to provide financial support
to the Company to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due for a period of not less than twelve months from the date of signing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and no adjustments have been made in the

financial statements,

Note 42: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Disclosure of amount due to suppliers under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act)" is as under:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, zo21
Prinecipal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.23 0.12
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at vear end -* =¥
0.23 0.12
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, bevond the appointed day during the vear - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year ) i
Amount of interest due and payvable for the - -
Interest accrued and remaining urpaid at the end of each accounting year e -
Amount of further interest remaining due and -* -*

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company
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Note 43: Financial Ratios

Sr.No Ratio Numerator Denominator O:..m.cn; E.ﬁmhc:m <u.n._m=an Reason for variance
Period Period in%
FY zo21-2022 m.MMMwo-
1fCurrent ratio {times) Current assets Current tabilities 1.96 0.53 265.91% | Mainly on aceousnt of
a) Due to revision in tenpure of borrowings
being,
b} Increase in Other Bank balances as
compared to previous vear.
2t Debt-equity ratio (times) Total Debt Total equity (£.27) (5.93) -78.52% {Mainly on account of Impairment of assets
leading to reduction in eguity.
3}Debt service coverage ratio  |Earnings available for | Debt Serviee (5.82) 2.03% ~387.18% ]| Decrease in ratio is mainly on account of
{times) Debt service decrease in the profit in the current year.
4fReturn on equity (% Loss/ {profit) for the |Average 130.82% -38.07% -443.02%{Mainly on aceount of loss for the current year
year shareholders equity
stInventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory 2,00 0.90 122.48%{Mainly on account of increase in consmmption
{times) due to increase in revenue,
6[Trade receivables turnover  |Revenue from Trade Receivable - - 0.00% | Not applicable (refer note 77 below)
ratio (times) operations
7| Trade payable turnover ratio| Purchases Trade payables 37,17 24.8% 49.48% i Mainly on account of decrease in purchases.
{times)
8| Net eapital turnover ratio Revenue from Working Capital 1.66 (1.39} -364.32% [Mainly due to increase in net working capital
{tintes) operations on aceount of revision in tenure of borrewings
being,
g|Net Profit ratio (%) Loss/ (profit) for the fRevenue from -118.58% 17.24% -787.75% | Decrease in ratie is mainly on account of
year operations deerease in the profit in the current year.
10| Retursn on capital employed {Earnings before Capitul Employed -248.95% 20.47% ~1316.08%} Decrease in ratio is mainly on account of
(%) interest and tax decrease in the profi{ in the current yvear,
11 Return on investiment (%} |Earnings before Total assets -119.93% 14.21% -943.71%| Decrease in ratio is mainly on account of
intevest and tax decrease in the profit in the current year.
Notes:
1 Total Debt = Non-current horrowings and Current borrowings
Earning for debt service = Loss/(profit) for the year + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest +Loss on impairment of property,
2 plant and equipment and right-of-use-assets.
3 Debt service = Interest and principal repayments including lease payments.
a Cost of Goods Sold = Cost of material consumed + Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in progress
5 Working capital =current assets minus current liabilities.
[ Capital employed = tangible net worth + total debt + deferred tax liability,
7 As there are no trade receivables as at March 31, zo22 and Mareh 31, 2021, trade receivable turnover ratio is not applicabie,
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Note 44: Additional regulatory information required by Schedule ¥11

(i)} Details of benami propertv held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and Rules made there under.

{ii) Borrowing secured against current assets

The Company has sanctioned borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly
returns or statements of current assets filed by the Cmpany with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts. However, the Company
has not drawn the limits in March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

(iii) Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.
(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

(vii) Utilisadon of borrowed funds and share preminum
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in ether persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(jes), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
(viit) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.
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(ix) Details of erypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual eurrency during the eurrent or previous year.
(x) Valuation of property plant & equipments and intangible asset

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
eurrent or previous year.

(xd) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee}, as disclosed in note 3 (a) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company

{(xii} Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory peried.
(xiii} Udlisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The Company has not availed any borrowings from any banks or finarncial institutions. However, the term loan received from related parties
has been applied for the purpose which it has been taken.

Note 45: Core Investment Companies (CIC)
Management has assessed that there are three Core Investment Companies (CIC) in the Group (‘Companies in the Group’ is as defined in

Master Direction - Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended)

Note 46: The figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary,
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